Agenda ltem 5.
ACTION ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED

Subject:
5.6 Approval of Financial Statements with Independent Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for
NU-SCS

Action Requested:
Approval

Previous Staff/Board Action, Background Information and/or Statement of Need:

All districts and charter schools are required to hire an auditing firm to conduct an independent annual
audit. This is the complete audit of all required areas, including budget, student records, personnel, payroll,
purchasing, etc. This audit was previously completed, but needed to be redone due to determining that
NU-SCS required a Single Audit due to receiving more than $750,000 in one fiscal year.

Fiscal Implications:
None

Contact Person/s: Shari Lovett, Tammy Picconi




NORTHERN UNITED - SISKITYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

County of Siskiyou
Yreka, California

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2022
With

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

June 30, 2022

INTRODUCTION SECTION

Title Page
Table of Contents

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditot's Report
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Activities

Statement of Functional Expenses
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Activities — Budget and Actual
Otganization
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Schedule of Instructional Time
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Fedetal Awards

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget
Report with Audited Financial Statements

Page
Number

21

23
24
25
26

27

28



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

TABLE OF CONTENTS
June 30, 2022
Page
Number
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS
Independent Auditot’s Repott on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 29
Independent Auditor's Repott on State Compliance 31
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance For
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Requited by the Uniform Guidance 35
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 38
Chatter School’s Corrective Action Plan 42

Schedule of Priot Audit Findings 43



Mok Gl Wewsel o D| g M
‘ it | Marthew [ Hhagiee, opa

MicTwe I Ol Ly
Landsey S, Carosaniai, «

SRS SOSSEERE DAVID L. MOONIE & o uir

Haprdie bt

NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School
2120 Campton Road, Suite H

Eureka, Califorma 95503

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern United - Siskivou Charrer
School (a nonprofit organization), which compiise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the fmancial statements present faitly, in all material tespeets, the financial position
of Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School (the "Charter School™) as of June 30, 2022, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits concained in Corversamens Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards arc further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Charter School and to
meet out other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relaung
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate o

provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Managemeant for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financtal statements in
accordance with accountng principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementaton, and maintenance of mternal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is requited to cvaluate whether there arc
conditions or events, considered in the aggtegate, that raise substantial doubt about the Chatter
School’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financil
statements are available to be issued.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKTYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - CONTINUED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s teport
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a materal
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from ertot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a rcasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the tisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or etror, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an undesstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Chatter School’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e HEvaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in out judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggtegate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We ate tequired to communicate with those charged with governance rcgarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Out audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as 2
whole. The accompanying schedule of activities - budget and actual, schedule of average daily
attendance, schedule of instructional time, schedule of financial trends and analysis, schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Codk of Federal Regulations Past 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Aundit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and reconciliation of annual financial and budget report with audited financial statements
are presented for putposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was detived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOI,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - CONTINUED

statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, accompanying schedule of activities - budget and actual, the schedule of average daily
attendance, the schedule of instructional time, the schedule of financial trends and analysis, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniforn: Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards, and
the reconciliation of annual financial and budget report with audited financial statements are fairly
stated, in all matetial respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The Chatter School Organization Schedule has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the schedule.

Emphasis of Mattet

As discussed in Note 14, the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been
reissued to include the required schedules, disclosures, and auditor’s reports to reflect that the
financial statements were subject to the Uniform Guidance for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accotdance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10,
2023, on out consideration of the Charter School’s intetnal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain ptovisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that teport is solely to desctibe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Chatter School’s internal control over financial
reporting ot on compliance. That repott is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Charter School’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

David L. Moonie & CO., Pigitally signed by David L.
Moonie & Co., LLP

boJ\r‘L&g) # Nm + Cz-; LLP Date: 2023.06.01 16:24:40 -07'00'
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Eurcka, Califotnia

February 10, 2023, except as to Note 14, which is as of June 1, 2023



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKITYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,254,766
Accounts teccivable 243,973
Deposits 5,000
Total Current Assets 1,503,739
Leasehold improvements 77,215
Equipment 155,609
Less: accumulated depreciation (107,708)
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 125,116
Total Assets $ 1,628,855
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 172,576
Unearned revenue 96,062
Total Current Liabilities 268,638
Total Liahilities 268,638
NET ASSETS
Net assets without donor resttictions 1,150,301
Net assets with donot restrictions 209,916
Total Net Assets 1,360,217
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,628,855

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Without With
Donor Donor
Restrictons Restrictions Total
Revenue and Other Support:
Local control funding formula $ 1,420,772 1,420,772
Federal grants and contracts 233202 233202
Other state grants and contracts 42106 § 159,756 201,862
Other local 152,461 152,461
Net assets released from restrictions 41,886 (41,886) -
Total revenues 1,890,427 117,870 2,008,297
Expenses:
Program services:

Instruction 1,049,622 1,049,622

Instruction-related setvices 353,769 353,769

Pupil services 94,657 94,657

Plant services 230,935 230,935

Supporting setvices:

General administration 93,737 93,737
Total expenses 1,822,720 - 1,822,720
Change in Net Assets 67,707 117,870 185,577
Beginning Net Assets 1,082,594 92,046 1,174,640
Ending Net Assets $ 1,150301 $§ 209,916 1,360,217

The notes to the financial statements ate an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL FEXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Support
Program Services Services
Instruction Pupil Plant Management
Instruction Related Setvices Services and General Total
Expenses:
Certificated Salaries $ 407,768 § 48,487 $ 456,255
Classified Salaries 127,208 81,400 $ 14,130 222,738
Employee Benefits 218,207 47,452 1,296 266,955
Books and supplies 83,056 4709 $ 1,863 10,952 § 75 100,655
Services and other
operating expenses 201,248 171,721 68,523 197,170 93,662 732,324
Depreciation 6,851 24,271 7,387 38,509
Other outgo 5,284 5,284
‘Total expenses $ 1,049,622 § 353,769 § 94657 § 230935 § 93,737 $ 1822720

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH IFLOWS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in Net Assets $ 185,577

Adjustments to reconcile increasc (dectease) in net assets to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities

Depreciation 38,509
(Increase) dectease in accounts receivable 465,732
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 90,017
Increase (decrease) in uneatned revenue : (15,110)
Total Adjustments 579,148

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 764,725

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities -

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Principal payments on debt (344,530)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities ~ (344,530)
Net Increase (Dectease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 420,195
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 834,571
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 1,254,766

There were no non-cash activities during the year.

The notes to the financial statements ate an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

This summaty of significant accounting policies of Notthern United - Siskiyou Charter School
(the Charter School) is presented to assist in understanding the Charter School’s’ financial
statements. The financial statements and notes are tepresentations of management, who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies have been consistently
applied in the prepatration of the financial statements.

Natute of Activities and Reporting Entity

Notthern United - Siskiyou Charter School is a public chatter school chartered by the Siskiyou
County Office of Education on February 21, 2018, and governed by Notthern United Chatter
School, a non-profit corporation. Notthern United Chatter School also governs one other
charter school, the Notthetn United — Humboldt Charter School. These financial statements
report on only the activities and net assets of the Notthern United — Siskiyou Charter School.

The Charter School is supported primatily through local control funding fotmula
apportionments based on pupil attendance, and federal and state grants for educational

purposes.

The mission of Notthern United - Siskiyou Chatter School, in pattnetship with patents and
community, is to engage all students in a comprehensive education, prepating them to be
confident, competent and proactive citizens in a diverse society.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and, therefore, include
all support and revenues when earned and all expenses when incurred, regardless of whether
these support and revenues or expenses were received or paid as of the end of a period. The
accounting pedod 1s from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost Donated assets ate recorded at their estimated acquisition value
at the date of donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on
a straight-line basis. The Charter School's capitalization threshold is $5,000. Equipment is
estimated to have useful lives ranging from five to seven yeats, and site and building
improvements ate estimated to have useful lives of 10 to 50 years. The Charter School has not
adopted a policy for implying time restrictions on conttibutions of long-lived assets. As of June
30, 2022, the Charter School has received no contributions of long-lived assets.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Charter schools are required by California Education Code Section 47604.33 to submit budgets to
their chartering agency for review by July 1 of each year. The Chatter School’s governing board
satisfied these requirements.



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Ycar Ended June 30, 2022

Donated Matetials and Services

Donated equipment and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their
estimated acquisition value at theit date of donation. Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School
repotts the donations as support without donort restrictions, unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used.

Donated services are recognized as conttibutions in accordance with ASC 958-605 and
subsections, if the setvices (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized
skills, ate petformed by people with those skills, and would othetwise be purchased by the
Charter School.

In the year ended June 30, 2022, there were no material donated matetials or services.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principals generally
accepted in the United States of Ametrica tequites management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosutes. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summatized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chartet School considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturtity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Tax Exempt Status

The Charter School is a non-profit public benefit corporation that is exempt from income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue
Service as other than a private foundation, and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided
in Section 170(b) (1) (A) (vi). It is also exempt from State franchise and income taxes under
Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxzation Code. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been reflected in these financial statements. Income tax retutns for the year
ended June 30, 2019 and forward may be audited by regulatoty agencies; however, the Chatter
School is not aware of any such actions at this time.

‘The Charter School has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740 that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return and provides that the tax cffects from an
uncertain tax position can be recognized in the financial statements only if, based on its merits,

9



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

the position is more likely than not to be sustained on audit by the taxing authorities.
Management believes that all tax positions taken to date ate highly certain, and, accordingly, no
accounting adjustment has been made to the financial statements.

Revenue and Support With and Without Donor Resttictions

Support received is recorded as an inctease in net assets without donot testtictions or net assets
with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or natute of any donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time testtiction ends ot putpose restriction
1s accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from resttictions.
Restricted support whose resttictions are met in the same trepotting period are recorded as
support without restrictions.

Grants and Accounts Receivable

Management considers grants and accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no
allowance for doubtful accounts is required. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be
charged to operations when that determination is made.

Grant Revenue Recognition

Grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions are teported as an increase in net assets
without donor restricions when the revenue is earned. Grant awatds accounted for as
contributions are recognized as an inctease in net assets with donor restricions when received
and are reclassified to net assets without donor trestrictions when donor resttictions have been
satisfied.

Unearned Revenue

Unexpended grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions ate recorded as unearned
revenue until expended, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Net Assets
The Chatter School's net assets consist of the following components:

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: - net assets with donor-imposed purpose or time
restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: — net assets without donor restrictions represents
total net assets not subject to putpose ot time testrictions.

Thete were no board designations of net assets without donor restrictions.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Yeatr Ended June 30, 2022

Punctional Expenses

Directly identifiable expenses ate chatged to programs and supporting services. Expenses related
to more than one function are chatged to programs and supporting setvices on the basis of
management estimates. Management and general expenses include those expenses that ate not
ditectly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and
direction of the Charter School.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are included in expense as they ate incurted.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurted. There wete no advettsing costs for the yeat ended
June 30, 2022.

Risk Management
Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School is exposed to vatious tisks of loss telated to totts;

theft of, damage to, and desttuction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters, for
which the Charter School catries insurance provided by Joint Powers Authorities.

The Charter School's local control funding formula ("LCFE") is teceived from a combination of
local property taxes, state apportionments, and other local soutces.

The County of Siskiyou is responsible for assessing, collecting, and apportioning property taxes.
Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and petrsonal propetty in the county. The levy is
based on the assessed values as of the preceding March 1, which is also the lien date. Property taxes
on the secured roll ate due on November 1 and February 1, and taxes become delinquent after
December 10 and Apil 10, respectively. Property taxes on the unsecuted roll are due on the lien
date (Match 1), and become delinquent if unpaid by August 31.

Secuted propetty taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fiscal year of the levy.
The County of Siskiyou apportions secuted propetty tax revenue in accordance with the alternate
method of distribution presctibed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.
This alternate method provides for ctediting each applicable fund with its total secured taxes upon
completion of the secured tax roll-approximately October 1 of each year.

The County Auditor-Controller teports the amount of the Chatter School's allocated propetty tax
tevenue to the California Depattment of Education. Property taxes ate tecorded as local LCFF
sources by the Charter School.

The California Depattment of Education reduces the Charter School’s entitlement by the Charter
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKTYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

School’s local propetty tax revenue. The balance is paid from the state General Fund, and is known
as the State Apportionment.

The Charter School’s base LCFF is the amount of general putpose tax tevenue, pet average daily
attendance (ADA), that the Chatter School is entitled to by law. This amount is multiplied by the
second period ADA to derive the Charter School’s total entitlement.

New Accounting Pronouncetnents

In 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in this ASU supersedes
the leasing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases with
terms longer than twelve months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern of expense tecognition in the statement of activities. The new
standard is effective for the Organization’s financial statements for the year ending June 30,
2023.

Cash and Investments

Cash on hand and in banks at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Statement of financial position:

Pooled Cash in County Treasury $ 1,254,766
Total Cash and Investments $ 1,254,766

There wete no cash balances held in banks during the year ended June 30, 2022.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the Chatter School maintains substantially all
of its cash in the Siskiyou County Treasury as patt of the common investment pool. The County
is testricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601, to invest in time
deposits, U.S. Government secutities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s
investment pool, banker’s acceptances, commercial papet, negotiable certificates of deposit, and
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Fait Value Measurements

The Charter School categorizes its fait value measutements within the fait value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fait valuc of the asset. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under generally accepted accounting principles ate as follows:

Level 1 - inputs ate quoted prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - inputs include:

a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL,
NOTHES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

b) Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

¢) Inputs other than quoted prices that ate obsetvable for the asset or liability;

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or cotroborated by observable market
data by cozrtelation ot other means.

Level 3 - inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

As of June 30, 2022, the Chattet School held no individual investments. The Charter School’s fair
value measurements wete as follows at June 30, 2022:

Investment Type Fair Value Level
Pooled Cash in County Treasuty $ 1,251,880 2

"The Charter School has not recorded fair value adjustments in the basic financial statements as they
were determined to be immatetial to the Charter School.

Credit Risk - Investments

Credit risk is the tisk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

The County Treasuret’s investments consist of government agencies, cettificates of deposit,
California Asset Management Program, percent corporate notes, and California State "I'reasuret’s
local agency investment fund. The S & P credit ratings for these investments include Aaa, Aa3
and non-fated for certificates of deposit, the California Asset Management Program, and the
California State Treasuret’s local agency investment fund.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the sisk that in the event of a bank failure, the Charter School
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral secutities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk fot investments is the sk that in
the event of a failure of the counter patty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Charter
School will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral secutities that ate in
the possession of another party. Neither the Califotnia Government Code not the County’s
investment policy contains legal or policy requitements that would limit the Chatter School’s
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, except that the California
Government Code requites that a financial institution secute deposits made by state or local
govetnment units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law
also allows financial institutions to secute Chatter School deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having 2 value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits. As of June 30,
2022, none of the Charter School’s deposits wete exposed to custodial credit fisk.

13



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Interest Rate Risk — Investments

Interest rate risk is the measurement of how changes in matket intetest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the mote
sensitive to changes in matket intetest rates of its fait value. One of the ways the County of
Siskiyou ‘T'reasurer manages its exposute to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
short-term and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so a portion of
its portfolio is maturing or coming close to matutity to ensute the cash flow and liquidity of
opetations. Information on the weighted average maturity of the County of Siskiyou Treasurer’s
investments was not available ptior to the issuance of the Chatter School's audited financial
statements.

Liquidity and Availability of Resources

At June 30, 2022, the Charter School had $1,020,185 of financial assets available within one year
of the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general operating expenses, as
follows:

June 30,
2022
Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,254,766
Grants and accounts receivable 243,973
Total Financial Assets at Year End 1,498,739
Less those unavailable for gencral expenditures within one
yeat, due to conttractual ot donor-imposed resttictions
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (172,576)
Uneammed revenue (96,062)
Restricted time ot putpose restrctions (209,916)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one yeat $ 1,020,185

The Charter School does not have a formal liquidity management policy. Howevet, the Charter
School does review its projected long-term cash needs, and maintains a significant resetve for
long-term needs. The Board has adopted a minimum reserve level of 10% of annual
expenditures.

14



NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

4. Grants and Accounts Receivable

Receivables at June 30, 2022 consist of the following:

Federal Government:

Federal Programs $ 55,066
State Government:
Categorical Aid Programs 13,712
LCFF 22,512
Lottery 4,781
Total State Government 41,005
Local Government:
Other 146,070
Interest 1,832
Total Local Government 147,902
Total Receivables $ 243,973

All receivables are expected to be realized in one year ot less.

5. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Site and improvements $ 77,215 $ 77,215
Equipment 155,609 155,609
Total capital assets 232,824 - - 232,824

Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements 13,508 $ 7,387 20,895
Equipment 55,691 31,122 - 86,313
Total accumulated deptreciation 69,199 38,509 - 107,708
Total capital assets, net $163,625 $ (38,509) § = $125,116

Depreciation was chatged to function as follows:

Instruction $ 6,851
Pupil services 24,271
Plant setvices 7,387

$ 38,509
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

6. Emplovee Retitement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
maintained by agencies of the Statc of California. Certificated employees are members of the
Statc Teachers' Retitement System, and classified employees are members of the Public
Employees' Retirement System.

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description and Provisions

The Chattet School contributes to the State Teachers' Retitement System (STRS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employet public employee retitement system defined benefit pension plan administered
by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions ate established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Tcachers'
Retitement Law. STRS issues a separate comprchensive annual financial repott that includes
financial statements and requited supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual
financial report can be found on the CalSTRS website.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to conttibute 10.25 percent or 10.205 petcent of their salary,
depending on whether they are member under the CalSTRS 2% at 60 plan or the CalSTRS 2%
at 62 plan, respectively. The required employer conttribution rate for fiscal yeat 2021-2022 was
16.92 petcent of annual payroll. The contribution tequirements of the plan members are
established by state statute. The Charter School's conttibutions to STRS for the fiscal yeats
ending June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 were §75,358, $79,990, and $79,731, respectively, and
equal 100 percent of the required conttibutions for each year.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The Charter School contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public
Employees' Retitement System (CalPERS), a cost-shating multiple-employer public employee
retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaties. Benefit provisions ate established by state statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial repott may be obtained at
CalPERS’ website under “Forms and Publications™.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to conttibute 7.0 percent (7.0 petcent of monthly salaty over
$133.33 if the member participates in Social Security) for members of both the Classic Member
Plan or the PEPRA Member Plan. The Charter School is required to contribute an actuarially
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate ate those
adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employet contribution rate for
fiscal year 2021-2022 was 22.91 percent of annual payroll. The conttibution requitements of the
plan members are established by state statute. The Charter School's contributions to CalPERS
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 were $23,036, $28,176, and

$33,067, respectively, and equal 100 petcent of the requited conttibution for each yeat.

. Short-term Obligations

The Charter School's short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:
Balance, Balance,
6/30/21 Increase Dectease 6/30/22

Revenue anticipation note  § 344,530 $ 344,530 $ =

Total $344,530 § - $344530 % -

The putpose of the short-term bottowing was to fund ongoing operations of the Charter School.
The borrowing was necessaty due to the State's deferral of a portion of the Charter School’s 2020-
2021 local contral funding formula apportionment from 2020-2021 to 2021-2022.

The debt was repaid directly from the Charter School’s 2021-2022 local control funding formula
appottionments.

. Net Assets With Donor Resttictions

Net assets with donot restrictions at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Child Nuttition Program $ 948
Educator Effectiveness 33,821
Lottery - Instructional Materials 31,533
A-G Complction Grant - Access/Success 56,250
A-G Completion Grant - Learning Loss Mitigation 56,250
Expanded Learning Opportunities 29,803
Expanded Learning Opportunities: Paraprofessional 896
Local Grants 415

Total $ 209,916

As net assets with donor testrictions are expended, the net assets are recognized as unrestricted
revenue.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Releases of restrictions for net assets with donot restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2022
were as follows:

Lottery - Instructional Matetials $ 1,524
Expanded Learning Opportunitics 30,235
Esxpanded Leatning Oppottunities: Paraptofessionals 9,769
Local Grants 358

Total $ 41,886

9. Joint Powers Agrecment

The Charter School participates in two joint ventutes under joint powets agteements (JPAs): the
Notth Coast Schools” Medical Insurance Group and the California Charter School Joint Powers
Authority (ChartetSAFE).

California Charter School Joint Powets Authotity (ChattetSAFE) - ChartetSAFE arranges for and
provides wotkers compensation and property and hability insurance for its members:
independent charter schools in California. CharterSAFE. is governed by a2 commission composed
of one representative from each member agency. ChartetSAFE is independent of any mnfluence
by the member charter schools beyond their representation on the commission. Each member
charter school pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares
surpluses and deficits propottionatcly to its participation in ChartetSAFE.

North Coast Schools' Medical Insurance Group (NCSMIG) - The NCSMIG arranges for and
provides medical, dental and vision insurance for its members. The NCSMIG is governed by a
board of directors composed of representatives from member school districts and charter
schools which have one hundred of more insured lives and one representative for those
members with less than one hundted insured lives. The Board controls the opetrations of the
NCSMIG including selection of management and approval of operating budgets. NCSMIG is
independent of influence by the member school districts and charter schools beyond their
representation on the Board. Each member school district and charter school pays a premium
commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits
proportionately to its patticipation in the NCSMIG.

The following is a summaty of financial information for ChartetSAFE and NCSMIG at June 30,
2021 (the most recent information provided to us):

NCSMIG CharterSAFE.

Total assets $ 13,812,004 $ 41,700,976
Total liabilities 4,503,657 23,137,342
Total net position $ 9,308,347 $ 18,563,634
Total revenues $ 49,653,481 $ 35,510,180
Total expenses 44,851,666 24,122,451

Change in net position $ 4,801,815 $ 11,387,729
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

10. Federal and State Revenue

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Chatter School was ptimatily funded through the LCFE
and was additionally funded through the following grants:

Federal and State Categorical Programs

Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School recognized the following grants and contracts passed
through the California Department of Education:

Federal Programs

CARES Act, ESSER Funds $ 21,088
CARES Act, ESSER II Funds 48,199
CARES Act, ESSER III Funds 36,247
CARES Act, ESSER III Expanded Learning

Opportunities, State Resetve for Emergency Need 115
CARES Act, ESSER II Expanded Learning

Opportunities, State Set Aside 224
Expanded Learning Opportunities, GEER 1T 4,043
Forest Reserve Funds 22133
NCLB: Title I, Part A 84,146
NCLB: Title II Part A, Teacher Quality 6,821
ESEA Title IV, Student Support 10.186

Total Federal $ 233,202
Educatot Effectiveness 42,276
A-G Completion Grant - Access/Success 56,250
A-G Completion Grant - Learning Loss Mitigation 56,250
State Lottery 21,795
State Leatning Loss Mitigation - prior year revenue 13,017
Lottery Instructional Materials 7,749
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant 29)
State Mandated Costs Block Grant 4,554

Total State 201,862

11. Risk Management

The Charter School is exposed to vatious tisks of loss telated to totts, theft or destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, and natural disasters. The Chatter School patticipates in Joint Powets
Agtreements for propetty, liability, and wotkets' compensation insurance. Thete have been no
significant reductions in insutance coverage. For the past year settlements did not exceed insurance
covetage.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THH FINANCTAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Fnded June 30, 2022

Commitments and Contingencies

State and Federal Allowances. Awards and Grants

The Chartet School has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that ate subject to
teview and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any requited reimbursement will not be
material.

Related Party Ttansactions

‘The Charter School and Notthern United - Humboldt Charter School are both governed by
Northern United Charter School, an independent nonprofit entity. Both schools shate some
administrative staff. The payroll and benefits for that shared staff is reported by Notthern United -
Humboldt, and Northem United - Siskiyou reimbutses Northern United - Humboldt for their
share of the payroll and benefits. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the total paid to Northern
United - Humboldt was $335,203, including accounts payable at June 30, 2022 of $158,613.

Subsequent Events

The Charter School has evaluated events through February 10, 2023, except for events related to
the matter desctibed in the following paragraph related to the reissuance of the financial statements,
which were evaluated through May 24, 2023, the date on which the reissued financial statements
wete available to be issued. One significant subsequent event was noted.

The audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been reissued to reflect that,
due to the combined total of federal expenditures for the Northern United — Siskiyou Chatter
School and the Notthetn United — Humboldt Chartetr School being over $750,000, the financial
statements were subject to the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform  Adpainistrative Reguiremients, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). The changes to the originally issued financial statement are as follows:
1. The auditor’s teport has been revised to include reference to the Schedule of
Expenditutes of Federal Awatds in the supplementary information section.
2. The Schedule of Expenditutes of Federal Awards and the related notes have been added
to the supplementary information section of the financial statements.
3. 'The Repott on Majot Programs has been added to the Other Auditors Report section of
the financial statements.
4. A summary page has been added in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

This reissuance did not result in any changes to the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements,
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Intetnal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Othet Matters Based On an Audit of Financial Statements in Accordance, the
Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance, ot the audit findings and questioned costs.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive -
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Local control funding formula $ 1,423,636 $ 1,420,772 $ (2,864)
Federal revenues 639,089 233,202 (405,887)
Other state revenues 190,246 201,862 11,616
Other local revenues 74,166 152,461 78,295
Total revenues 2,327,137 2,008,297 (318,840)
Expenses:
Certificated Salaties 518,040 456,255 61,785
Classified Salaries 239,461 222,738 16,723
Employee Benefits 354,481 266,955 87,526
Books and supplies 258,882 100,655 158,227
Setvices and other opetating expenses 1,248,721 732,324 516,397
Depreciation 38,509 (38,509)
Other outgo 21,618 5,284 16,334
Total expenses 2,641,203 1,822,720 818,483
Change in Net Assets (314,066) 185,577 499,643
Net Assets, July 1, 2021 1,174,640 1,174,640
Net Assets, June 30, 2022 $ 860,574 $ 1,360,217 $ 499,643
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

ORGANIZATION

June 30, 2022

Notthern United - Siskiyou Charter School setvices kindergarten through grade 12, and was granted its
charter by the Siskiyou County Office of Education on February 21, 2018.

The Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was composed of the following
members, with terms expiting as follows:

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Fxpites
Jere Cox President December 2024
Bianca Garza Vice-President December 2023
Rosemary Kunkler Member December 2024
Melissa Johnson Member December 2024
Aime Snider Member (Appointed 1/19/22) December 2023
Jeff Lanphete Member (Resigned 11/10/21)
ADMINISTRATION
Shati Lovett
Executive Director
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
Elementary:
Total Kindergarten through Grade 3 25.04 24.96
Classroom-based ADA included in total - -
Total Grades 4 through 6 29.80 29.59
Classroom-based ADA included in total = =
Total Grades 7 and 8 15.75 16.34
Classroom-based ADA included in total - -~
Total Elementary School 70.59 70.89
Classtoom-based ADA included in total = -
High School
Total Grades 9 through 12 46.33 46.82
Classroom-based ADA included in total & -
Total High School 46.33 46.82
Classtoom-hased ADA included in total - -
Total Elementary and High School 116.92 117.71

Classroom-based ADA included in total - ~

Average daily attendance is a measutement of the number of pupils attending classes of the
Chatter School. The putrpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to
provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts.
This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade
levels and in different programs.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TTME
For The Yeat Ended June 30, 2022

2021-22
Instructional Instructional
Instructional Minutes Days Offered .
Minutes Offered Traditional
Grade Level Requirement Minutes Calendar * Status

The Northemn United - Siskiyou Charter School received no funding for classroom-based

instruction. Therefore this schedule does not apply.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

CIAL TRENDS AND ANATYSIS

Fot The Yeat Ended June 30, 2022

For The Year Ended
Budget
6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020

Revenues and other financial

soutces $ 2,836,711 $ 2008297 § 1814631 § 2175419
Expenditures 3,386,910 1,822,720 1,644,029 2,052,005
"Total Outgo 3,386,910 1,822,720 1,644,029 2,052,005
Change in Net Assets $ (550,199 $ 185577 $§ 170,602 § 123414
Ending Net Assets $ 810,018 $ 1,360,217 § 1,174,640 $ 1,004,038
Available Undesignated Reserves $ 662,073 $ 1,150,301 § 1,082594 § 987,092
Designated for Economic Uncertainties $ - $ x 3 - $ =
Undesignated Net Assets $ 662,073 $ 1,150,301 § 1082594 § 987,092
Available Reserves as a Percentage

of Total Outgo 19.55% 63.11% 65.85% 48.10%
Total Long-Term Debt $ = $ - $ - $
Average Daily Attendance at P-2 103 117 139 139

This schedule discloses the Charter School's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current budget
information. These finandal trend disclosures ate used to evaluate the Charter School's ability to continue as a going
concemn for a reasonable amount of time.

Net assets have increased $356,179 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2022-2023 budget projects a decrease of
$550,199 (40.45%). For a school this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least five percent of total
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo), or $71,000, whichevet is greater.

The Charter School has not incurred an operating deficit in any of the last three yeats, but does anticipate incurring an
operating deficit during the 2022-2023 fiscal year. The Charter School had no long-term debt over the past three years.
However, the Charter School did have an outstanding balance of $344,530 for a short-tenm revenue anticipation note as
of June 30, 2021. That note was paid in full during 2021-2022.

ADA decreased by 22 over the prior two years. The Charter School anticipates a decrease of 14 ADA during the fiscal
year 2022-23.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pass-
Federal Through
Assistance Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/ Listing Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
Federal Programs:
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE):
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) - Covid19 84.425D 15536 $ 21,088
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER II) - Covid19 84.425D 15547 48,198
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) - Covid19 84.4250 15559 36,247
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER II) - Expanded
Learning Opportunity State Reserve - Covid19 84.425D 15618 224
Expanded Learning Opportunity GEER II - Covid19 84.425C 15619 4,043
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER 1IT) Expanded
Leaming Opportunity State Reserve, Emergency Needs - Covid19 84.4250 15620 115
Total Education Stabilization Funds, Assistance Listing 84.425 109,915
ESEA: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants 84.010 14329 84,146
ESEA: Title IT, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 84.367 14341 6,821
ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 15396 10,186
Total Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE) 211,068
Total U.S. Department of Education 211,068
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE):
Forest Reserve Funds 10.665 10044 22,133
Total Passed Through Califomia Department of Education (CDE) 22,133
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 22,133
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 233,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES 10O THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Northern United — Siskiyou Charter School and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniforme Admeinistrative Requirenients, Cost Principles,
and Aundit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Thetefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
general purpose financial statements.

The District did not use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate.

2. Total Federal Hxpenditures

The Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
presents the federal awatds for just the Notthern United - Siskiyou Charter School. The
Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School and the Notthern United - Humboldt Charter
School are both governed by, and shate the federal identification numbet with, the Northern
United Charter Schools. Therefore the total federal expenditutes of both schools are combined
in determining the applicability of the Uniform Guidance to each school. The federal
expenditures of each school was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Notthern United - Siskiyou Chatter School $ 233,201
Northern United - Humboldt Charter School 955,567
Total $1.1 68

The combined total of federal expenditures is over $750,000, therefore Northern United —
Siskiyou Chatter School is subject to the Uniform Guidance.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET
REPORT WI'T'H AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

June 30, 2022 Annual Financial and Budget
Reportt Net Assets $ 1,212,273

Adjustments and Reclassifications
Increasing and (Decreasing) Net Assets -

Increase capital assets 163,625
Increase accounts receivable 30,966
Decrease accounts payable 17,166
Increase depreciation expense (38,509)
Decrease prepaid expense (4,683)
Increase health and welfare benefits payable (23,990)
Decrease miscellaneous voluntary deductions 3,370
Rounding (1)

June 30, 2022 Audited Financial Statements
Net Assets $ 1,360,217
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL, OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTLRS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCIE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDAIRIS

Board of Directors

Notthern United - Siskiyou Charter School
2120 Campton Road, Suite H

Fureka, Califormia 95503

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gowernment uditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Northemn
United - Siskiyou Charter School (the “Charter School”), a nonprofit organization, which compuise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activitics,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our teport thereon dated February 10, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auclit
procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiensy in infernal control exists when the design or operadon of a control does not allow
management ot employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and cotrect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a defictency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A sgnificant deficiensy is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those

charged with governance.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOQOL.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAIL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WI'TH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS -
CONTINUED

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited putpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses ot significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, duting our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be matetial weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency 1n internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as Iinding 2022-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Charter School’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compltance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be
teported under Government Auditing Standards and which is desciibed 1n the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings 2022-002.

Charter School's Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor o perform limited procedures on the Charter
School’s tesponses to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Chatter School’s responses were not subjected to
the other auditing procedutes applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this repott is solely to desctibe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Charter School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Governmen! Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dorreds L. Meorsse+ o

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Eureka, California
February 10, 2023, except as to Note 14, which is as of June 1, 2023
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCEH

Board of Directors

Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School
2120 Campron Road, Suite H

[urcka, California 95503

Report on Compliance

Opinion

We have audited the Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School’s (the “Charter Schoal”) compliance:
with the requirements specified in the 202/-22 Guide Yor Aninal Audits of K-12 Local dmeation +1gees
and State Conipliance Reporting issued by the California Educaton Audit Appeals Panel, that are applicable
to the District’s educational programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

In out opinion, the Charter School complied, in all matedal respeces, with the complianee requirements
referred to above that are applicable to the Charter School’s educanonal programs for the vear ended
June 30, 2022,

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audidng standards generally accepted n
the United Srates of America, the standatds applicable to financial audits contained ia Gorernmen:
Auditing Standardy, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the requirements of
the 2021-22 Guide jor Annual Andits of K-12 1ocal Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of out report.

We are required o be independent of the Charter School and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the compliance requirements referred to above. Qur audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Charter School's compliance with the compliance requitements referred to

above.
Responsibilitics of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the applicable compliance requirements, and for the
design, implementaton, and maintenance of effecdve internal contol over compliance with
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Charter School's State programs.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE — CONTINUED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain teasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
applicable compliance requirements occurred, whether due to fraud or etror, and to express an
opinion on the Charter School's compliance based on the compliance audit. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but 1s not absolute assurance, and, therefote, is not a guatantec that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Anditing
Standards, and the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting will always detect a matetial noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ctrot, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the overtide of internal
control. Noncompliance with the applicable compliance tequitements is considered material if there
1s a substantial likelthood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable uset of the report on compliance about the Chatter School's compliance with the
requirements of the State programs as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Aunditing
Standards, and the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting, our responsibilities are to:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

e Identify and assess the tisks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and petform audit procedutes responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Charter School's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as the
auditor considers necessaty in the circumstances;

e Obtain an undetstanding of the Charter School's internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
and to test and report on internal control ovet compliance in accordance with the 2027-22
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 1ocal Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not
for the purpose of exptessing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School's
internal controls over compliance. Accotdingly, no such opinion is expressed; and

e Select and test transactions and records to determine the Charter School's compliance with
the State laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
Description Performed
Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools
Attendance Not applicable
Teacher certification and misassignments Not applicable
Kindergarten Continuance Not applicable
Independent study Not applicable
Continuation education Not applicable
Instructional Time Not applicable
Insttuctional Matetials Not applicable
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Not applicable
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE — CONTINUED

Procedures

Description Performed
Classroom Teacher Salaties Not applicable
Early Retitement Incentive Program Not applicable
GANN Limit Calculation Not applicable
School Accountability Report Card Not applicable
Juvenile Coutt Schools Not applicable
Middle or Fatly College High School Not applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Not applicable
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Not applicable
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Not applicable
District of Choice Not applicable
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Chatrter Schools
California Clean Enetgy Jobs Act Yes
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Coutse Based Not applicable
Immunizations Not applicable
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes
Cateer Technical Education Incentive Grant Not applicable
In Person Instruction Grant Yes
Chatter Schools

Attendance Yes

Mode of Instruction Not applicable

Nonclasstoom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Yes

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Yes

Annual Instructional Minutes — Classtoom Based Not applicable

Charter School Facility Grant Progtam Not applicable

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and matetial
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified duting the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be
reported in accordance with the California Education Audit Appeals Panel's 2027-22 Guide For Annual
Awudits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, and which is desctibed in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2022-002. Our opinion on the
Charter School's compliance with the requirements specified in the 2027-22 Guide For Annual Andits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting is not modified with respect to this matter.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKI'YOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STA'TE COMPLIANCE — CONTINUELD

Charter School's Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards tequires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Charter
School’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Charter School's response was not subjected to the other
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Report on Intemal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the notmal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cortect, noncompliance with the compliance
requitements tefetred to above on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 1s
a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in intetnal control ovet compliance, such that thete is
a reasonable possibility that materia)l noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above will not be prevented, or detccted and cotrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with the compliance requitement referred to above that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited putpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in intetnal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
matetial weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal control ovet compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The putpose of this repott on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requitements
specified in the 2027-22 Guide For Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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February 10, 2023, except as to Note 14, which is as of June 1, 2023
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NORTHERN UNITELD - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHQOI.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRIEED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School
2120 Campton Road, Suite H

IZureka, Califorma 95503

Report on Compliance for Each Majot Federal Program ®

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School’s (the "Charter School”) comphance
with the types of compliance requitements idenufied as subject (o audit in the OMB Compliance
Suppiement that could have a direct and matertal effect on cach of the Charter School’s major federal
programs for the vear ended June 30, 2022. The Charter School’s nmajor federal programs are
identified w1 the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanving Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
tederal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contaned i Gorerment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compuroller General of the United States; and rthe audit
requirements of Tide 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Paxe 200, Unijorm Administratire Regizrenents,
Cost Principles. and Andit Reguirements for Federal Awarde (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilines
under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described m the Auditor’s
Responsibilides for the Audit of Compliance section of our teport.

We are requited to be independent of the Charter School and to meet our other efhucal
responsibilitics, in accotdance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We behieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Charter School’s compliance with the comphance requirements referred to

above.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE, - CONTINUED

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requitements refetred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Charter School’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requitements treferted to above occutred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Charter School’s compliance based on out audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not absolute assurance, and, thereforte, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standatds, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect matetial noncompliance when it exists. The rsk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from errot, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
matetial if thete is a substantial likelihood that, individually ot in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the repott on compliance about the Charter School’s
compliance with the requitements of each major federal program as a whole.

In petforming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Anditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of matetial noncompliance, whether due to fraud ot errot, and
design and perform audit procedures tesponsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Chatter School’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and petforming such other procedures as we
considered necessaty in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Charter School’s internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances and
to test and report on intetnal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Charter School’s internal control over compliance. Accotrdingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are tequired to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE. - CONTINUED

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliane exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that thete
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and cottected, on a timely basis. A sgnificant
defrciency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requitement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet impottant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilittes for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be matenal weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in intetnal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
mtetnal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of exptessing an opinion on the cffectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The putpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this repott is not suitable for any other purpose.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Fureka, California
June 1, 2023
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKTYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2022

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements

‘Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Matetial weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awatds
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? None reported
Type of auditor's repott issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance
Section 200.516(a) No
Identification of major programs:
Federal Assistance
Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.425D Elementary and Secondary School Emetgency Relief (ESSER) - Covid19
84.425D Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER 1) - Covid19
84.425U Elementary and Secondary School Emetgency Relief (ESSER IIT) - Covid19
84.425D Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER IT) Expanded
Learning Opportunities State Resetve - Covid19
84.4250 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER IIT): Expanded
Learning Opportunities, State Reserve, Emergency Needs - Covid19
84.425C Expanded Learning Opportunities GEER II — Covid 19
Dollar thteshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
No

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKITYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULT OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2022

Section 1 — Financial Statement Findi

2022-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Criteria

Education Code Section 41020(h) provides that not Jatet than December 15 an audit report for
the preceding fiscal year is to be filed with the County Superintendent of Schools, the California
Department of Education, and the State Controller’s Office.

Condition
The Chatter School and the Charter School's auditor wete not able to complete and finalize the

audit report by the December 15 deadline. The Chatter School requested and obtained
approval for an cxtension to Januaty 31, 2022 to file the audit report.

Identification of Repeat Finding
This is a repeat of ptiot year Audit Finding 2021-001.
Effect

The County Superintendent of Schools, the Department of Education, and the State
Controller’s Office received the repott after the initial December 15, 2022 deadline.

Cause

Cumulative prior year delays related to Covid-19 carried over into the 2021-22 audit schedule,
making it difficult for the auditor to complete the audit report by the December 15 due date.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Charter School and the auditor work closely in the future to plan for a
timely filing of the audit.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Cotrective Actions

The Chatter School agrees to the recommendation and will adhere to the cortective action plan
desctibed in the "Charter School's Cottective Action Plan" section immediately following this
section of the audit report.

Section II — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None teported.
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKIYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

2022-002: UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNTS (CODE 40000)

Criteria

Pursuant to Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(2), the Charter School is required to annually
submit its enrolled free and reduced-price meal eligibility, foster youth, and English leatner
pupil-level records for enrolled pupils to the State Supetintendent using the California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS). This information is used to
determine the Charter School's unduplicated pupil count. Unduplicated pupil means a pupil
entolled in a school Charter School or a charter school who is either classified as an English
leatner, eligible for a free or reduced-price meal, ot is a foster youth. A pupil is counted only
once if they qualify under multiple categories. The unduplicated pupil count is used in the
calculation of the Charter School's apportionment from the local control funding formula.
The count is documented in CAT.PADS Forms 1.17 and 1.18.

Condition

During our testing of the unduplicated student counts we noted one student listed as qualifying
for free/reduced meals who did not qualify, but also noted thtee students who did qualify for
free/reduced meals and who wete not included in the unduplicated count. Out sample included
100 petcent of the population of students claimed as free/reduced price meals and English
language funding eligible. The net adjustment requited to the unduplicated count is an increase
of 2.

Effect

The Charter School's unduplicated student count was understated by 2 students. Increasing the
unduplicated count by 2 tesults in an increase in the tevenue from the local control funding
formula in the amount of $1,000. Following is a schedule of the reported and audited counts.

Unduplicated Pupil Count
Inctease (Dectease) to Unduplicated

Pupil Count Based on Adjustments of:

Eligibility Eligibility Total Enrollment
Certified Fot Free/ for English Eligibiity  Adjusted Certified  Adjusted

Total Reduced Learner  For Both Total Total Total
Unduplicated Price Meals  Funding FRPM  Unduplicated Enrollment Enrollment

Pupil Count (FRPM) (EL) and EL  Pupil Count Count Count
Charter School Total 97 2 99 120 120

Schools Tested:

Nortthern United - Siskiyou 97 2 99 120 120
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NORTHERN UNITED - SISKTYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2022

Cause

Cletical error.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Charter School ensute that free/reduced meals applications ate on
band for all students included in the CALPADS Forms 1.18 and 1.17, and catefully compare
qualifying free/reduced applications to the CALPADS unduplicated count to ensure all
qualifying students ate included.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Charter School agrees and will adhere to the cottective action plan described in the
"Chartet School's Corrective Action Plan" section immediately following this section of the

audit report.
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Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School

Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

423 S. Broadway
Yreka, California 96097
Pht: 536-842-4509
Fax#: 530-842-3226

- nucharters.org

JCTIVE ACTION PLAN

School Director - CHARTER SCHOOLS CO

Shari Lovetr

Board of Directors
Rosemary Kunkler— President
Bianca Garza - Vice President

2022-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Jere Cox o Name of contact person: Shan Lovett, School Director

Melissa Johnson

Aime Snider . Cortective Action: Northern United — Siskiyou Charter School’s School Ditector and
the auditor will work closely in the future to plan for a timely filing
of the audit.

Proposed Completion Date: February 2, 2023

2022-002: UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNTS (CODE 40000)

Name of contact person: Shari Lovett, School Director

Corrective Action: The specific students’ free/reduced status was updated in CalPads
and in the school’s informaton system to ensure accurate
eligibility. The Food Services Cootdinator will ensure that
free/reduced meals applications are on and for all students
included in the CalPads reports 1.17 and 1.18 and carefully
compare qualifying free/teduced applications to the CalPads
unduplicated count to ensute all qualifying students are included.

Proposed Completion Date: February 2, 2023




NORTHERN UNITED - SISKITYOU CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

June 30, 2022

2021-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Condition

Prior to the initial January 31, 2022 deadline, the Chatter School obtained an extension until
February 28, 2022 to file the audit report. The Charter School’s audit teport was filed in eatly
April 2022.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Chatter School and the auditot wotk closely in the futute to plan fora
timely filing of the audit.

Current Status

Not implemented, see cuttent year Finding 2022-001.
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Agenda ltem 5.
ACTION ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED

Subject:
5.7 Approval of Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for NUCS

Action Requested:
Approval

Previous Staff/Board Action, Background Information and/or Statement of Need:

All districts and charter schools are required to hire an auditing firm to conduct an independent annual
audit. This is the complete audit of all required areas, including budget, student records, personnel, payroll,
purchasing, etc. This is the audit report of the two schools combined.

Fiscal Implications:
None

Contact Person/s: Shari Lovett, Tammy Picconi
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NORTHERN UNTTED CHARTTIR SCHOOI.S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Northern Untted Charter Schools
2120 Campton Road, Suite H
I“urela, California 95503

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern United Charter Schools (a
nenprofit Charter School), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the vear then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

I our opinion, the financial statements present faitly, in all marvetial respects, the financial position
of Notthern United Charter Schools {the "Chatter School") as of June 30, 2022, and the changes m
its net assets and irs cash flows for the vear then ended n accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted 1n the United States of Amettca.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditng standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government -luditing
Stundards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [inancial
Statements section of our teport. We are required to be independent of the Charter School and to
meet our other ethical responsibilides, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial starements 1
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fuir
preseatation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of CITOT.

In prepating the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter
School’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the dare that the financial

statements are available to be issued.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - CONTINUED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
ate free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud ot errot, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Govermment Awditing Standards will always detect a materal
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
highet than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually ot in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a teasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auwditing Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identfy and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedutes include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosutes in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in ordet to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s intetnal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the apptropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in out judgment, there are conditions ot events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Charter School’s ability to continue as a
going concern fot a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and cettain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matter

The Northern United Charter Schools governs and operates two charter schools: the Northem
United - Humboldt Charter School and the Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School. Each of the
charter schools also issued sepatate individual audits reporting their respective school’s financial
position as of June 30, 2022 and the results of operations for the yeat then ended.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of activities - budget and actual, schedule of average daily
attendance, schedule of instructional time, schedule of financial trends and analysis, schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOQLS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - CONTINUED

Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards, and reconciliation
of annual financial and budget teport with audited financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 1s the
responsibility of management and was detived from and relates directly to the undetlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied 1n the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedutes, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and othet additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying
schedule of activities - budget and actual, the schedule of average daily attendance, the schedule of
mstructional time, the schedule of financial trends and analysis, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the reconciliation of annual
financial and budget report with audited financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The Organizadon Schedule has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the schedule.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 31, 2023,
on our consideration of the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with cettain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agteements
and other matters. The putpose of that teport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control over financial
teporting or on compliance. That repott is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Charter School’s internal control ovet financial
reporting and compliance.

. 4 . : David L. Moonie & e T
bONLQ (gﬁ (M sV &3 - Co., LLP Dter 2023,06.01 13:43:45 0700
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Eureka, California
May 31, 2023



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITTON

June 30, 2022
ASSETS
Cash $ 2,188,466
Accounts teceivable 1,094,668
Prepaid expenditures 5,000
Total Current Assets 3,288,134
Leasehold improvements 77,215
Equipment 274,879
Less: accumulated depreciation (175,294)
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation ; 176,800
Total Assets $ 3,464,934
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 161,394
Unearned revenue 176,113
Total Curtent Liabilities 337,507
Total Liabilities 337,507
NET ASSETS
Net assets without donor restrictions - 2,514,806
Net assets with donox resttictions 612,621
Total Net Assets 3,127,427
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 3,464,934

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITTES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenue and Other Suppott:
Local control funding formula
Federal grants and contracts
Other state grants and contracts
Other local

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues

Expenses:

Program setvices:
Instruction
Instruction-related setvices
Pupil services
Plant setvices

Supporting setvices:
General administration

Total expenses

Change in Net Assets

Beginning Net Assets
Ending Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

5

Without With.
Donor Donor
Resttictions Restrictions Total
$ 4,896,396 4,896,396
1,188,769 1,188,769
257,682 $§ 585935 843,617
403,811 403,811
276,493 (276,493) -
7,023,151 309,442 7,332,593
3,899,527 3,899,527
1,528,140 1,528,140
474130 474,130
598,843 598,843
480,402 480,402
6,981,042 - 6,981,042
42,109 309,442 351,551
2,472,697 303,179 2,775,876
§ 2514806 § 612,621 3,127,427




NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONATL EXPENSES
Fot The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Support
Program Services Setvices
Iostruction Pupil Plant Management
Instruction Related Setvices Setvices and General Total
Expenses:
Certificated Salaries $ 1,888432 § 326901 § 197421 $ 129,108 2,541,862
Classified Salaries 348918 548,821 49950 § 26,373 66,400 1,040,462
Employee Benefits 1,112,223 460,267 118,452 5,888 96,297 1,793,127
Books and supplies 169,456 56,343 52,945 27,006 75 305,825
Services and other
operating expenses 319,942 135,808 31,091 532,189 188,522 1,207,552
Depreciation 30,705 24,271 7,387 62,363
Other outgo 29,851 29,851
Total expenses $ 3899527 § 1528140 § 474,130 § 598,843 § 480,402 6,981,042

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile inctease (decrease) in net assets to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (dectease) in unearned revenue

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payments on tevenue anticipation note payable
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Net Inctease (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information -

Cash paid during the year for interest

There were no non-cash activities during the year.

The notes to the financial statements ate an integral part of this statement.
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351,551

62,363
1,064,412
64,612
(40,661)

1,150,726

1,502,277

(1,210,000)

(1,210,000)

292,277

1,896,189

2,188,466

1,687
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOQOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fot The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Sutnmary of Sienificant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of Northern United Charter Schools (the
Chatter School) is presented to assist in understanding the Charter School’s financial statements.
The financial statements and notes are representations of management, who is responsible for
their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies have been consistently applicd in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Nature of Activities

Notthern United Charter Schools is a non-profit organization that governs two public charter
schools: the Northern United-Humboldt Charter School and the Northern United-Siskiyou Charter
School. The Northern United-Humboldt Charter School was chartered by the Humboldt County
Office of Education on December 20, 2017. The Northern United-Siskiyou Charter School was
chartered by the Siskiyou County Office of Education on February 21, 2018. The Charter School
is supported primarily through local control funding formula apportionments based on pupil
attendance, and federal and state grants for educational purposes.

The mission of Northern United Charter Schools, in partnetship with patents and community, is
to engage all students in a comprehensive education, preparing them to be confident, competent
and proactive citizens in a divetse society.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chatter School have been prepated on the acctual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and, therefore, include
all support and revenues when earned and all expenses when incurred, tegatdless of whether
these support and revenues or expenses wete received or paid as of the end of a petiod. The
accounting period is from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated assets ate recorded at their estimated acquisition value
at the date of donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on
a straight-line basis. The Chatter School's capitalization threshold is $5,000. Equipment is
estimated to have useful lives ranging from five to seven years, and site and building
improvements atre estimated to have useful lives of 20 to 50 years. The Organization has not
adopted a policy for implying time restrictions on contrbutions of long-lived assets. As of June
30, 2022 the Organization has received no contrbutions of long-lived assets.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Charter schools are required by California Education Code Section 47604.33 to submit budgets to
their chartering agency for review by July 1 of each year. The Charter School’s governing board
satisfied these requirements.



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Donated Materials and Services

Donated equipment and other noncash donations ate recorded as contributions at their
estimated acquisition value at their date of donation. Notthem United Chatter Schools repotts
the donations as unrestricted support, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated
assets must be used.

Donated services ate recognized as contributions in accordance with ASC 958-605 and
subsections, if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets ot (b) requite specialized

skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Organization.

In the year ended June 30, 2022, there were no material donated materials or services.

Use of FEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prnciples generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Expense Allocation

The costs of providing vatious programs and othet activities have been summatized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Cash and Cash Hquivalents

L

‘The Charter School considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Tax Fxempt Status

The Charter School is a non-profit public benefit corporation that is exempt from income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Intetnal Revenue
Service as other than a private foundation, and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided
in Section 170(b) (1) (A) (vi). It is also exempt from State franchise and income taxes under
Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been reflected in these financial statements. Income tax returns for 2018 and
forward may be audited by regulatory agencies; however, the Charter School is not aware of any
such actions at this time.

The Charter School has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740 that clatifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return and provides that the tax effects from an
uncertain tax position can be recognized in the financial statements only if, based on its merits,

9



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

the position is more likely than not to be sustained on audit by the taxing authorties.
Management believes that all tax positions taken to date are highly certain, and, accordingly, no
accounting adjustment has been made to the financial statements.

Revenue and Support With and Without Donor Restrictions

Suppott received is tecorded as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions or net assets
with donot restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction
is accomplished), net assets with donot restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activitics as net assets relcased from restrictions.
Restticted support whose restrictions ate met in the same reporting period ate recorded as
unrestricted support.

Grants and Accounts Receivable

Management considers grants and accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no
allowance for doubtful accounts is requited. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be
charged to operations when that determination is made.

Grant Revenue Recognition

Grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions are reported as an increase in net assets
without donor restricions when the revenue is ecarned. Grant awards accounted for as
contributions are recognized as an increase in net assets with donot restricions when received
and are reclassified to net asscts without donor restrictions when donor restrictions have been

satisfied.

Uneatned Income

Unexpended grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions are recorded as unearned
income until expended, at which time they ate recognized as revenue.

Net Assets
The Organization's net assets consist of the following components:

Net Assets With Donot Restrictions: - net assets with donot-imposed purpose ot Hme
testrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: — net assets without donor restrictions represents
total net assets not subject to putpose or time restrictions.

There were no board designations of net assets without donor restrictions

10



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Functional Fxpenses

Directly identifiable expenses are chatged to programs and supporting services. Expenses related
to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting setvices on the basis of
management estimates. Management and general expenscs include those expenses that are not
directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall suppott and
direction of the Charter School.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs are included in expense as they are incurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incutted. Advertising costs for the year ended June 30, 2022
were $14,190.

Risk Management

Northern United Charter Schools is exposed to vatious risks of loss related to totts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; etrors and omissions; and natural disasters, for which the
Organization carries insurance provided by Joint Powers Authorities.

The Charter School's local control funding formula ("LCFF") is received from a combination of
local propetty taxes, state apportionments, and other local sources.

The County of Humboldt and County of Siskiyou are responsible for assessing, collecting, and
apportioning propetty taxes. Taxes atc levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal
propetty in the county. The levy is based on the assessed values as of the preceding March 1, which
1s also the lien date. Property taxes on the secured roll are due on November 1 and February 1, and
taxes become delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the
unsecuted roll ate due on the lien date (Match 1), and become delinquent if unpaid by August 31.

Secured property taxes are tecorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fiscal year of the levy.
The County of Humboldt and County of Siskiyon apportion secured property tax revenue in
accotrdance with the alternate method of disttibution ptescribed by Section 4705 of the California
Revenue and Taxation Code. This alternate method provides for crediting each applicable fund
with its total secured taxes upon completion of the secured tax roll-approximately October 1 of
each year.

The County Auditor-Controllet repotts the amount of the Chatter School's allocated property tax
revenue to the California Department of Education. Property taxes ate recorded as local LCFF
sources by the Charter School.

11



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

The California Department of Education reduces the Charter School’s entitlement by the Charter
School’s local property tax tevenue. The balance is paid from the state General Fund, and is known
as the State Apportionment.

The Charter School’s base LCFF is the amount of genetal purposc tax revenue, per average daily
attendance (ADA), that the Chatter School is entitled to by Jaw. This amount 1s multiplied by the
second period ADA to derive the Charter School’s total entitlement.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic §42). The guidance in this ASU supersedes
the leasing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees ate required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases with
terms longer than twelve months. Leases will be classified as either finance ot operating, with
classification affecting the pattetn of expense recognition in the statement of activities. The new
standard is effective for the Organization’s financial statements for the year ending June 30,
2023.

. Cash and Investments

Cash on hand and in banks at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Statement of financial position
Pooled Cash in County Treasury $2,188,466
Total Cash and Investments  $2,188,466

Thete were no cash balances held in banks during the year ended June 30, 2022.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the Chatter School maintains substantially all
of its cash in the Humboldt and Siskiyou County Treasuries as part of the common investment
pool. The Counties are restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601,
to invest in time deposits, U.S. Government secutities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds,
State Treasuter’s investment pool, banket’s acceptances, commercial papet, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Fair Value Measurements

The Charter School categorizes its fait value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under generally accepted accounting principles are as follows:

Level 1 - inputs ate quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - inputs include:

a) Quoted prices for similar assets ot liabilities in active markets;
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

b) Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are obsetvable for the asset ot liability;

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable matket
data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - inputs are significant unobsetvable inputs.

As of June 30, 2022, the Chatter School held no individual investments. The Charter School’s fair
value measurements were as follows at June 30, 2022:

Investment Type Fair Value Level
Pooled Cash in County Treasury $2,182,876 2

The Charter School has not recorded fair value adjustments in the basic financial statements as they
were determined to be immatetial to the Charter School.

Credit Risk - Investments

Credit tisk is the risk that an issuet of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

The Humboldt County Treasuret’s investments at June 30, 2022 consist of 47.65 percent federal
agencies, 29.76 percent money matkets, 1.38 percent municipal bonds, 15.68 percent treasury
coupons, 2.38 percent medium term notes, 1.73 percent miscellaneous coupon securties, and
1.42 percent certificates of deposit. The S & P credit ratings for these investments include AAA,
AA, A+te, and Ae, and non-rated for cettificates of deposit and the California State Treasurer’s
local agency investment fund.

The Siskiyou County Treasurer’s investments at June 30, 2021 (the most recent date available)
consist of 63.95 percent federal agencies, 1.63 petcent cotpotrate notes, 15.44 percent certificates
of deposit, 13.81 percent California State Ttreasuret’s local agency investment fund, and 5.17
petcent California Asset Management Program. The S & P credit ratings for these investments
include AAA, A1, A+, and non-rated for certificates of deposit and the California State
Tteasurer’s local agency investment fund.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit tisk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Charter School
will not be able to recover its deposits ot will not be able to recover collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in
the event of a failure of the countet party (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Charter
School will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that ate in
the possession of another party. Neither the California Government Code nor the County’s
investment policy contains legal ot policy requirements that would limit the Charter School’s
exposure to custodial credit sk for deposits or investments, except that the California
Govemment Code tequires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state ot local
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

government units by pledging secutities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law
also allows financial institutions to secure Charter School deposits by pledging first trust deed
morttgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secuted public deposits. As of June 30,
2022, none of the Chatter School’s deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk — Investments

Interest rate risk is the measurement of how changes in matket interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Genetally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the more
sensitive to changes in matket interest rates of its fair value. One of the ways the County of
Humboldt and County of Siskiyou Treasuret manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by
purchasing a combination of short-term and long-tetm investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so a portion of its portfolio is maturing or coming close to matutity to ensute
the cash flow and liquidity of operations. The weighted average maturity of the County of
Humboldt Treasuter’s investments is 688 days. The weighted average maturity of the County of
Siskiyou Treasuret’s investments 1s 902 days.

. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

At June 30, 2022, the Charter School had $2,509,119 of financial assets available within one year
of the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general operating expenses, as
follows:

June 30,
2022
Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $2,188,466
Grants and accounts teceivable 1,094,668
Total Financial Assets at Year End 3,283,134
Less those unavailable for general expenditures within
year, due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions
Accounts payable and acctued liabilities (161,394)
Restricted time ot putpose testrictions (612,621)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year $2,509,119

The Charter School does not have a formal liquidity management policy. Howevet, the Charter
School does review its projected long-term cash needs, and maintains a significant reserve for
long-term needs. The Board has adopted a minimum freserve level of 10% of annual
expenditures.

14



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

4, Grants and Accounts Receivable

Receivables at June 30, 2022 consist of the following:

Federal Government:

Federal Programs $ 490,333
State Government:
Categorical Aid Programs 51,555
LCFF 340,760
Lottery 15,442
Total State Government 407,757
Local Govemment:
Othet 174,183
Interest 22,395
Total Local Government 196,578
Total Recetvables $1,094,668

All receivables are expected to be tealized in one year of less.

5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Site and improvements $ 77,215 ’ $ 77,215
Equipment 274,879 274,879
Total capital assets 352,094 - 352,094

Less: accumulated deptreciation for:

Improvements 13,508 § 7,387 20,895
Equipment 99,423 54,976 154,399
Total accumulated depreciation 112,931 62,363 175,294

$ 239,163 § (62,363) % $ 176,800

Total capital assets, net

Depreciation was chatged to function as follows:

Instruction
Pupil services

Plant services

$ 30,705
24,271
7,387

$ 62,363
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOI.S
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

6. Leases

Operating Ieases

The Charter School has entered into operating leases for facilities with terms in excess of one
year. ‘These agreements do not contain purchase options. These agreements contain
termination clauses providing for cancellation. It is unlikely that the Charter School will cancel
the agreements prior to the expiration date.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ended T.ease
June 30, Payments
2023 $ 110,942
2024 107,563
2025 66,532
Totals $ 285,037

The Charter School will receive no sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals
associated with these leases. Total operating lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
$406,557.

7. Emplovee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are coveted under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the
State Teachers' Retirement System, and classified employees are members of the Public
Employees' Retirement System.

State Teachers' Retitement System (STRS)

Plan Desctiption and Provisions

The Charter School contributes to the State Teachers' Retitement System (STRS), a cost-shating
multiple-employer public employee retitement system defined benefit pension plan administered
by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachets'
Retitement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial teport that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual
financial report may be obtained from the STRS Headquarters, 100 Waterfront Place, West
Sacramento, California 95605.

[funding Policy
Active plan members are required to contribute 10.25 percent or 10.205 percent of their salary,
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

depending on whether they ate member under the CalSTRS 2% at 60 plan or the CalSTRS 2%
at 62 plan, respectively. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2021-2022 was
16.92 percent of annual payroll. The contribution tequitements of the plan membets ate
established by state statute. The Chartet School's contributions to STRS for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020, excluding on-behalf payments from the State, were
$394,482, $367,571, and $405,182, respectively, and equal 100 percent of the required

contributions for each yeat.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The Chatter School conttibutes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public
Employees' Retitement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides
retitement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Benefit ptovisions ate established by state statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the Public Employces' Retitement Law. CalPERS issues a sepatate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained
from the CalPERS Headquarters, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811.

Funding Policy

Active plan membets ate required to contribute 7.0 percent (7.0 percent of monthly salary over
$133.33 if the member participates in Social Secutity) for members of both the Classic Member
Plan or the PEPRA Member Plan. The Charter School is requited to conttibute an actuarially
determined tate. The actuatial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those
adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The tequired employer contribution rate for
fiscal year 2021-2022 was 22.91 percent of annual payroll. The contribution requitements of the
plan members are established by state statute. The Charter School's contributions to CalPERS
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 were $211,552, $162,045, and $180,098,
respectively, and equal 100 percent of the required contribution for each year.

Short-term Obligations

The District's shott-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance, Balance,
6/30/21 Increase Dectease 6/30/22
Revenue anticipation note $1,210,000 $ 1,210,000 -~
Total $1,210,000 § - $ 1,210,000 % -

The purpose of the short-term borrowing was to fund ongoing opetations of the Charter School.
The borrowing was necessary due to the State's defetral of a portion of the Charter School’s 2020-
2021 local control funding formula appottionment from 2020-2021 to 2021-2022.

The debt was repaid directly from the Charter School’s 2021-2022 Jocal control funding formula
apportionments.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

9. Net assets with donor resirictions

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

SNP Covid-19 Emergency Operational Costs Reimbursement $ 3,079
Educator Effectiveness 2021-22 156,882
Lottery - Instructional Matetials 117,888
Special Ed: Dispute Prevention and Resolution 2,204
Special Ed: Leaming Recovery Support 26,596
Expanded Leaming Opportunities 29,803
Expanded Learning Opportunities: Paraprofessional 896
Kitchen Infrastructure & Training - Infrastructure Upgrades 37,452
Kitchen Infrastructure & Training - Food Setvice Staff Training 2,000
A-G Access/Success Grant 112,500
A-G Learning Loss Mitigation Grant 112,500
Child Nutrition Program 948
Local Grants 9,873

Total $ 612,621

As net assets with donor restrctions are expended, the net assets ate recognized as untestricted
revenue. As of June 30, 2022, net assets released from restrictions consisted of the following:

SNP Covid-19 Emergency Operational Costs Reimbursement $ 2,735
Lottety - Instructional Materials 1,524
Educator Effectiveness 2021-22 9,607
Special Ed: Dispute Prevention and Resolution 3,915
Special Ed: Learning Recovery Suppott 7,823
Child Nutrition Program 56,058
Expanded Leaming Oppottunities 158,398
Expanded Leaming Oppottunities - Paraprofessional Staff 36,075
Local Grants 358

Total $ 276,493

10. Joint Powets Agreemeng

The Chatter School patticipates in three joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPAs): the
Notth Coast Schools” Insutance Group, the Notth Coast Schools’ Medical Insurance Group, and
the California Charter School Joint Powers. Authority (ChattetSAFE).

North Coast Schools' Insurance Group (NCSIG) - The NCSIG arranges for and provides
wotkers compensation and property and liability insurance for its members: all of the Humboldt
and Del Notte County School Charter Schools and their County Offices of Education. The
NCSIG is governed by a commission composed of one representative from each member
agency. A nine member executive cominittee elected by and from the commission controls the
operations of the NCSIG, including selection of management and approval of operating
budgets. The NCSIG is independent of any influence by the member Charter Schools beyond
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
OTIS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

their representation on the commission. FEach membet Charter School pays a premium
commensurate with the level of coverage trequested and shares sutpluses and deficits
proportionately to its participation in the NCSIG.

North Coast Schools' Medical Insurance Group (NCSMIG) - The NCSMIG arranges for and
provides medical, dental and vision insurance for its members. The NCSMIG is governed by a
board of directors composed of reptesentatives from member Charter Schools which have one
hundted or more insured lives and one representative for those member Charter Schools with
less than one hundred insured lives. The Boatd controls the operations of the NCSMIG
including selection of management and approval of operating budgets. NCSMIG is independent
of influence by the member Charter Schools beyond their representation on the Board. Each
member Charter School pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and
shares surpluses and deficits propottionately to its participation in the NCSMIG.

California Charter School Joint Powers Authority (ChatterSAFE - CharterSAFE arranges for and
provides workers compensation and property and liability insurance for its members:
independent charter schools in California. ChartesSAFE is governed by a commission composed
of one representative from each member agency. CharterSAFE is independent of any influence
by the member charter schools beyond their representation on the commission. Each member
charter school pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares
surpluses and deficits proportionately to its participation in ChartetSAFE.

The following is 2 summary of financial information for NCSIG, NCSMIG, and CharterSAFE
at June 30, 2021 (the most tecent information provided to us):

NCSIG NCSMIG ~ CharterSAFE
Total assets $5.868,879 $13,812,004  $41,700,976
Total liabilities 880,826 4,503,657 23,137,342
Total net position $4083,053 § 9,308,347  $18,563,634
Total revenues $7,589,521  $49,653,481  $35,510,180
Total expenses 7157261 44,851,666 24122451

Change in net position $ 432,260 § 4,801,815 $11,387,729
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Yeat Ended June 30, 2022

11. Federal and State Revenue

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Charter School was primatily funded through the LCFF
and was additionally funded through the following grants: -

Federal Programs

Special Education $ 70,814
ESEA: Title I, Part A 191,405
CARES Act, ESSER Funds 74,272
CARES Act, ESSER II Funds 389,639
CARES Act, ESSER III Funds 120,440
CARES Act, ESSER III Learning I.oss Funds 28,094
Expanded Leaming Opportunities ESSER I State Resetves 41,019
Expanded Learning Opportunites GEER 11 13,403
Expanded Leaming Opportunities ESSER III State Reserves 26,594
Expanded Leaming Opportunities ESSER III Learning Loss 45,958
ESEA: Tide II, Part A, Teacher Quality 23301
ESEA: Tide TV, Part A, Student Support 20,840
ESEA: Title VI - Rural & Low Income School Program 11,447
Forest Reserve Funds 22,133
Public School Chatter School Grant 53,390
Other federal 614
Child Nutrition Progtam. 49,592
SNP Covid-19 Operational Costs Reimbursement 5,814
Total Federal $ 1,188,769
State Programs
State Lottery $ 78,045
Lottery Instructional Materials 33,826
Educator Effectiveness 165,337
Special Ed Dispute Prevention and Resolution 6,119
Special Ed Learning Recovery Suppotrt 34419
A-G Success 112,500
A-G Learning 112,500
Expanded Learning Opportunity 2,703
Expanded Learning Opportunity 10% Set-Aside 13,147
State Learning Loss Mitigation, prior year revenue 13,017
Mandated Block Grant 13,709
STRS On-Behalf Payments 214,737
Child Nutrition Program 4,106
Child Nutrition Program: Kitchen Infrastructure Upgtrade 37,452
Child Nutrition Program: Food Service Staff Training 2,000
Total State $ 843,617
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

12. Risk Management

13.

14.

The Charter School is exposed to various risks of loss related to totts, theft or destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, and natural disasters. The Charter School purchases commercial insurance
for wotkers compensation benefits and patticipates in a Joint Powers Agreement for property and
Liability insurance. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior
year. Fot each of the past three years settlements did not exceed insurance coverage.

Commitments and Contingencies

State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants

The Charter School has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to
teview and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditute
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is belicved that any required reimbursement will not be
material.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Charter School has evaluated events through May 31, 2023, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

CHEDULE QF ACTIVITIES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Vatdance with
Final Budget
Positive -
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Local control funding formula $ 5,266,511 $ 4,797,628 $ 4,896,396 $ 98,768
Federal revemes 1,187,385 1,594,656 1,188,769 (405,887)
Othet state revenues 779,047 832,001 843,617 11,616
Other local revenues 565,744 655,845 403,811 (252,034
Total revenues 7,798,687 7,880,130 7,332,593 (547,537)
Expenses:
Certificated Salaries 2,583,013 2,683,834 2,541,860 141,974
Classified Salades 972,675 1,055,251 1,040,462 14,789
Employee Benefits 1,897,293 1,881,641 1,793,126 88,515
Books and supplies 691,309 464,069 305,829 158,240
Services and other operating expenses 1,972,970 2,042,642 1,207,551 835,091
Depreciation 62,363 (62,363)
Other outgo 21,618 46,185 29,851 16,334
Total expenses 8,138,878 8,173,622 6,981,042 1,192,580
Change in Net Assets (340,191) (293,492) 351,551 645,043
Net Assets, July 1, 2021 2,775,876 2,775,876 2,775,876 -
Net Assets, June 30, 2022 $ 2,435,685 $§ 2482384 § 3,127,427 $ 645,043
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAT, POSITION

ASSETS
Cash

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenditures
Total Current Assets

Leasehold improvements

Equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net of
Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Uneatned revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

June 30, 2022
Humboldt Siskiyou Eliminate
Charter Charter Intetschool
School School Transfers Total
$ 933,700 $ 1,254,766 $ 2,188,466

1,009,308 243973 $ (158,613) 1,094,668
5,000 5,000

1,943,008 1,503,739 (158,613) 3,288,134
77,215 77,215

119,270 155,609 274,879
(67,586) (107,708) (175,294)
51,684 125,116 : 176,800

$ 1994692 § 1,628,855 (158,613) § 3,464,934
§ 147431 $ 172576 $ (158613) $ 161,394
80,051 96,062 176,113

227 482 268,638 (158,613) 337,507
227,482 268,638 (158,613) 337,507
1,364,505 1,150,301 2,514,806
402,705 209,916 612,621
1,767,210 1,360,217 » 3,127,427
$ 1994692 § 1,628,855 § (158,613) §$ 3464934

The notes to the financial statements are an integral patt of this statement.
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NORTIIERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Humboldt Siskiyou Eliminate
Charter Charter Interschool
School School Transfers Total
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITIIOUT DONOR
RESTRICTTONS
Revenue and Other Support
Local control funding formula $ 3,475,624 $ 1,420,772 $ 4,896,396
Federal grants and contracts 955,567 233,202 1,188,769
Other state grants and contracts 215,576 42,106 257,632
Other local 586,553 152,461 $  (335,203) 403,811
Net assets released from restrictions 234,607 41,886 276,493
Total revenues and other support 5,467,927 1,890,427 (335,203) 7,023,151
Expenses:
Program services:

Instruction 2,955,332 1,049,622 (105,427) 3,899,527

Instruction-related services 1,322,329 353,769 (147,958) 1,528,140

Pupil services 439,498 94,657 (60,025) 474,130

Plant setvices 367,908 230,935 598,843

Supporting services:

General administration 408,458 93,737 (21,793) 480,402
Total expenses 5,493,525 1,822,720 (335,203) 6,981,042
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Without

Donor Restrictions (25,598) 67,707 - 42,109
CHANGES TN NE1 ASSETS WITH DONOR
RESTRICTTIONS
Revenue and Other Support:

Other state grants and contracts 426,179 159,756 585,935

Net assets released from restrictions (234,607) (41,886) (276,493)
Increase (Dectease) In Net Assets Without

Donor Restrictions 191,572 117,870 - 309,442
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets 165,974 185,577 - 351,551
Beginning Net Assets 1,601,236 1,174,640 2,775,876
Ending Net Assets $ 1,767,210 $ 1,360,217 § - $ 3,127427

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
ORGANIZATION

June 30, 2022

Northern United Charter School setvices two kindergarten through grade 12 charter schools.
Northern United-Humboldt Chatter School was granted its charter by the Humboldt County Office of
Education on December 20, 2017. Northern United-Siskiyou Charter School was granted its chatter
by the Siskiyou County Office of Education on February 21, 2018.

The Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was composed of the following
members, with terms expiring as follows:

GOVERNING BOARD
Name Office Term Expires
Jere Cox President December 2024
Bianca Garza Vice-President December 2023
Rosemary Kunkler Member December 2024
Melissa Johnson Member December 2024
Aime Snider Member (Appointed 1/19/22) December 2023
Jeff Lanphere Member (Resigned 11/10/21)
ADMINISTRATION
Shari Lovett

Executive Ditector
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DATLY ATTENDANCE
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Northern United-
Humboldt Charter Northern United-
School Siskiyou Chatter School Total
Second Second Second
Period Annual Period Annual Period Annual
Report Report Report Report Report Report
Elementary:
Total Kindergarten through Grade 3 103.97 103.93 25.04 24.96 129.01 128.89
Classroom-based ADA included in total > o = = 2 .
Total Grades 4 through 6 80.90 81.00 29.80 29.59 110.70 110.59
Classroom-based ADA included in total - - - - . -
Total Grades 7 and 8 51.41 51.50 15.75 16.34 67.16 67.84
Classroom-based ADA included in total 2 54 % -
Total Elementary School 236.28 236.43 70.59 70.89 306.87 307.32
Classroom-based ADA included in total - - < = = >
High School
Total Grades 9 through 12 75.64 75.16 46.33 46.82 121.97 121.98
Classroom-based ADA included in total = - - = - -
Total High School 75.64 75.16 46.33 46.82 121.97 121.98
Classroom-based ADA included in total - = - - - -
Total Elementaty and High School 311.92 311.59 116.92 117.711 428.84 429.30

Classroom-based ADA included in total = - = - - R

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the Charter School. The purpose of
attendance accounting from 2 fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school
districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

26



NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TTMIL
Fot The Year Ended June 30, 2022

2021-22 Instructional
Instructional Instructional Days Offered
Minutes Minutes Traditional
Grade Level Requirement Offered Calendar * Status

The Northem United Charter School teceived no funding for classtoom-based instruction.
Therefore this schedule does not apply.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues and other financial
sources

Expenditures

Total Outgo

Change in Net Assets

Ending Net Assets

Available Undesignated Reserves
Designated for Economic Uncertainties
Undesignated Net Assets

Available Reserves as a Percentage
of Total Outgo

Total Long-Term Debt

Average Daily Attendance at P-2

For The Year Ended
Budget
6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020
$ 7934482 7,332,593 6,963,892 7,138,049
8,772,812 6,981,042 6,452,379 7,450,936
8,772,812 6,981,042 6,452,379 7,450,936
$  (838,330) 351,551 511,513 (312,887)
§ 2,289,097 3,127,427 2,775,876 2,264,363
§ 1,744910 2,514,806 2,472,697 2,200,314
$ _ - - -
§ 1,744,910 § 2514806 § 2472697 § 2200314
19.89% 36.02% 38.32% 29.53%
$ - - = =
395 429 513 514

This schedule discloses the Charter School's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current
budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the Charter School's ability to continue

as a going concern for a reasonable amount of time.

Net assets have increased $863,064 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2022-2023 budget projects a decrease of
838,330 (26.81%). For a school this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least four percent of total
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo), or $71,000, whichever is greater.

The Charter School has incurred an operating deficit in one of the last three years, and anticipates incurring an
operating deficit during the 2022-2023 fiscal year.

ADA decreased by 85 over the past two years. The Charter School anticipates a decrease of 34 ADA during the

fiscal year 2022-2023.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

HEDTILE OF EXPENDITURES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Pass-
Federal Through
Assistance Eatity
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/ Listing Identifying Tederal
Program or Cluster Title Numbex Number Expenditures
Federal Programs:
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE):
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) - Covid19 84.425D 15536 $ 74,272
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER II) - Covid19 84.425D 15547 389,638
Elementzry and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER I1I) - Covid19 84.425U0 15559 120,441
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III), Learning
Loss - Covid19 84.425U 10155 28,094
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER TI) - Expanded
Learning Opportunity State Reserve - Covid19 84.425D 15618 41,019
Expanded Learning Opportunity GEER 1T - Covid19 84.425C 15619 13,403
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) Expanded
Learning Opportunity State Reserve, Emergency Needs - Covid19 84.425U0 15620 26,709
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER IIT) Expanded
Learning Opportunity State Reserve, Learning Loss - Covid19 84.425U0 15621 45,843
Total Education Stabilization Funds, Assistance Listing 84.425 739,419
Special Education: IDEA Basic Loc. Assist. Entitlement Part B 84.027 13379 70,814
Total Special Education Cluster 70,814
ESEA: Tide I, Part A, Basic Grants 84.010 14329 191,405
ESEA: Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 84.367 14341 23,301
ESEA: Title V, Part B, Rural and Low Income Schools 84.358 14356 11,447
ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 15396 20,840
Public Charter School Grant 84.282A 15385 53,390
Total Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE) 1,110,616
Total U.S. Department of Education 1,110,616
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE):
Child Nutrition Program: National School Lunch - Seamless Summer Option 10.555 13391 49,592
Child Nutrition Program: SNP Emergency Cost Reimbursement - Covid-19 10.555 15637 5,814
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 55,406
Forest Reserve Funds 10.665 10044 22,133
Pandemic EBT Local Administrative Grant - Covid-19 10.649 15644 614
Total Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE) 78,153
78,153

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAT. AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditutes of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Patt 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
prepatation of, the general putpose financial statements.

The District did not use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET

REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

Notthern
United-
Siskiyou

Charter School

Total

$ 1212273

163,625
30,966
17,166

(38,500)
(4,683)

(23,990)

3,370
)

§ 3,019,534

(23,854)
(16,195)
163,625
30,966
17,166
(38,509)
(4,683)
(23,990)
3,370
3

Northern
United-
Humboldt
Chazter School
June 30, 2022 Annual Financial and Budget
Report Net Assets $ 1,807,261
Adjustments and Reclassifications
Increasing and (Decreasing) Net Assets -
Increase accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expense (23,854)
Increase health and welfare benefits (16,195)
Increase capital assets
Increase accounts receivable
Decrease accounts payable
Increase depreciation expense
Decrease prepaid expense
Decrease miscellaneous voluntary deductions
Decrease in cash with fiscal agent
Rounding )
June 30, 2022 Audited Financial Statements
Net Assets $ 1,767,210

$  1,360217

$ 3,127,427
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOILS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WI'TTH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Dircctors

Northern United Charter Schools
2120 Campton Road, Suite H
Eureka, California 95503

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ot
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gozermpment Asditing S tanderds
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Northern
United Charter Schools {the “Charter School”) which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2022 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collecdvely comprise the
Charter School’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 31, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Charrer
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not exptess an uopinion on the
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or e¢mployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 1o prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakuess is o defieiency, or
combinadon of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibiliny that a
material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 1s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet impottant enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITI
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2022

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intetnal control that might be material
weaknesses ot significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as Finding 2022-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As patt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Charter School’s financial statements are
free from matetial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2022-002.

Charter School's Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Charter
School’s responses to the findings identified in out audit and described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Charter School’s tesponses were not subjected to
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we
exptess no opinion on the responses.

Putpose of this Report

The putpose of this teport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Charter School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accotdingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

D e & MM govrn~ G .
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Eureka, California
May 31, 2023
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NORTHIEERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOL.S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCIE

Board of Dircctors

Northern United Charter Schools
2120 Campton Road, Suite H
Eureka, California 95503

Report on Compliance

Opinion

We have audited the Notthern United Chatter Schools’ (the “Charter School”) compliance with the
requitements specified m the 2021-22 Guide For ~nnual Andits of K-12 Local Edication Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting 1ssued by the California Educaton Audit Appeals Panel, that are applicable to the
Charter School’s educagonal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

In cur opinion, the Chartet School complied, in all matetial respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that are applicable to the Chatter School’s educational programs for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted out audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i
the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained i Gorerier!
Awditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the requirements of
the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Andits of K-12 Local Education gencies and State Complianee Reporting. Our
tesponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repoit.

We ate required to be independent of the Charter School and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant cthical requirements relating to our audit. We belicve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the compliance tequirements referred ro above. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Charter School's compliance with the compliance requirements refetred to

above.
Respousibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the applicable compliance requitements, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over comphliance with
requirements of laws, statutes, reguladons, rules, and provisions of contracts ot grant agreemenis
applicable to the Charter School's State programs.

34

G000 G Strcet, Sure 103 8 Areata, GA 95521 o FOT.822 3537 {Bus. v FU7AHI2.0298 (P

S5 Secand Street Sace S5 s Doveha, G G301 « TOT 12 0737 (Busd @ T30 30U (hany @ dnddlme e B



NORTHERN iJNITED CHARTER SCIHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR1 ON STATE COMPILIANCE — CONTINUED

Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Out objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether matetial noncompliance with
applicable compliance requirements occutred, whether due to fraud or etror, and to express an
opinion on the Charter School's compliance based on the compliance audit. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance, and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting will always detect a matetial noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements is considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Charter School's compliance with the
requitements of the State programs as a whole.

In performing an andit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Andits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance

Reporting, our responsibilities are to:
e [Dxercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

e Identify and assess the tisks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or etror, and
design and petform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
exatnining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Charter School's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as the
auditor considers necessaty in the circumstances;

o Obtain an understanding of the Charter School's internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ate apptopriate in the circumstances,
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 2021-22
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School's
internal controls over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed; and

e Select and test trapsactions and records to determine the Chatter School's compliance with
the State laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
Description Performed
Local Education Agencies Other Than Chatter Schools
Attendance Not applicable
Teacher cettification and misassignments Not applicable
Kindergarten Continuance Not applicable
Independent study Not applicable
Continuation education Not applicable
Instructional Time Not applicable
Instructional Materials Not applicable
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Not applicable
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE — CONTINUED

Procedures

Description Performed
Classroom Teacher Salaries Not applicable
Early Retirement Incentive Program Not applicable
GANN Limit Calculation Not applicable
School Accountability Report Card Not applicable
Juvenile Court Schools Not applicable
Middle or Eatly College High School Not applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Not applicable
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Not applicable
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instraction Not applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Not applicable
District of Choice Not applicable
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools
California Clean Fnergy Jobs Act Yes
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not applicable
Immunizations Not applicable
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Leaming Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes
Cateer Technical Education Incentive Grant Not applicable
In Person Instruction Grant Yes
Charter Schools

Attendance Yes

Mode of Instruction Not applicable

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Yes

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Yes

Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based Not applicable

Chatter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and materal
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be
reported in accordance with the California Education Audit Appeals Panel's 2027-22 Guide For Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, and which is desctibed in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2022-002. Our opinion oo the
Charter School's compliance with the requitements specified in the 2027-22 Guide For Annual Andits of
R-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting is not modified with respect to this matter.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE — CONTINUED

Chatter School's Response to Finding

Government Audsting Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Charter
School’s vesponse to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Charter School's response was not subjected to the other
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Repott on Internal Control Over Compliance

A defiviency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management ot employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cortect, noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referted to above on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal conirol over compliance is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficicncies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above will not be prevented, or detected and cortected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 2 combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with the compliance requirement referred to above that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet impottant enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during out audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
matetial weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses ot significant deficiencies in
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified,

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this repott on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
specified in the 2021-22 Guide For Annual Audits of K-12 ocal Education Agencies and Siate Comipliance
Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dol Z .0 gerie Co.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Euteka, California
May 31, 2023

37



Mok G \serzet opny D S M
[ N Moarnthew oL aae, oy

Miclael B Clivee, oo
Lnidsee S Caossan « 19

€ tgiontd ind VIR I

Laron N Wess em DAVID L. MOONIE & co.ue

NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNITFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Northern United Charter Schools
2120 Campton Road, Suite H
Eureka, California 95503

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Northera United Chatter Schools’ (the "Chatter School”) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Complance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Charter School’s major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Charter School’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of audito’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs.

In our opinion, the Charter School cotnplied, in all material respects, with the types of comphance
requirements tefetred to above that could have a dircct and material effect on each of its major

federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted n
the United States of Ametica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 1n Gorernment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audic
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regutations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Reqnivesireals,
Cost Principles, and Andit Reguirenents for Vederal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilitics
under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further descrbed in the Auditor’s
Responsibilites for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Charter School and to meet owr other cthical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Charter School’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
ahove.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE - CONTINUED

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
tequirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts ot grant agreements
applicable to the Chatter School’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Charter School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assutance, but is not absolute assurance, and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect matetial noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from errot, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overtide of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements teferred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Charter School’s
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as 2 whole.

In petforming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Txercise professional judgment and maintain Professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Charter School’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedutes as we
considered necessaty in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Charter School’s internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of exptessing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the
Charter School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE - CONTINUED

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management ot employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, ot detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requitement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficienctes, in internal control over compliance, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requitement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signiftcant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than 2 material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described 1n the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, duting our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses ot significant deficiencies in
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The putpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intcrnal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this repott is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Eureka, California
May 31, 2023
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2022

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditot's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Matenial weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? Yes

Noncompliance matetial to financial statements noted? No

Federal Avwards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? None reported

Type of auditot's report issued on compliance for

major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
repotted in accordance with the Uniform Guidance
Section 200.516(a) No
Identification of major programs:
Federal Assistance
Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.425D Elementaty and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) - Covid19
84.425D Elementary and Secondaty School Emergency Relief (ESSER TI) - Covid19
84.425U Elementary and Secondaty School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) - Covid19
84.425U Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER I1I), Leaming
Loss - Covid19 _
84.425D Elementaty and Secondaty School Emergency Relief (ESSER 1T) Expanded
Learning Opportunities State Reserve - Covid19
84.425U Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III): Expanded
Learning Opportunities, State Reserve, Emergency Needs - Covid19
84.425U [ilementaty and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER I11): Learning
Loss Mitigation - Covid19
84.425C Expanded Learning Opportunities GEER II — Covid 19
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditce qualified as low-risk auditeer No
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2022

Section 11 — Financial Statement Findings

2022-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Criteria

Education Code Section 41020(h) provides that not later than December 15 an audit report for
the preceding fiscal year is to be filed with the County Superintendent of Schools, the California
Depattment of Education, and the State Controller’s Office.

Condition

Prior to the initial December 15, 2022 deadline, the Charter School obtained an extension until
March 15, 2023 to file the Northern United — Humboldt Charter School audit report, and until
January 31, 2023 to file the Northern United — Siskiyou Charter School audit report. The
Northern United — Humboldt Chatter School’s audit teport was filed prior to the extended
date. The Northern United — Siskiyou Charter School’s audit repott was filed two weeks after
the extended due date.

Identification of Repeat Finding

This is a repeat of Northem United — Siskiyou Charter School’s prior year Audit Finding 2021-
001.

Effect

The County Superintendent of Schools, the Depattment of Rducation, and the State
Controller’s Office teceived the report after the initial December 15, 2022 deadline.

Cause

The extension for the Notthem United - Humboldt Charter School audit report was necessary
due to delays in the County of Humboldt providing final cash reports to verify the Charter
School's cash balances in the county treasury. The extension for the Northern United -
Siskiyou Chatter School audit repott was necessary due to unforeseen delays in obtaining
information.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Charter School and the auditor work closely in the future to plan fora
timely filing of the audit.
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The Chartet School agrees to the tecommendation and will adhere to the corrective action plan
desctibed in the "Charter School's Cortective Action Plan" section immediately following this
section of the audit report.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2022

Section I11 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section TV — State Award Findines and Questioned Costs

2022-002: UNDUPLICATED PUPTL COUNTS (CODE 40000)

Criteria

Pursuant to Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(2), the Charter School is required to annually
submit its cnrolled free and reduced-price meal cligibility, foster youth, and English learner
pupil-level records for enrolled pupils to the State Superintendent using the California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS). This information is used to
determine the Charter School's unduplicated pupil count. Unduplicated pupil means a pupil
enrolled in 2 school Chatter School or a charter school who is cither classified as an English
learnet, eligible for a free ot reduced-price meal, or is a foster youth. A pupil is counted only
once if they qualify under multiple categories. The unduplicated pupil count is used in the
calculation of the Charter School's apportionment from the local control funding formula.
The count is documented in CALPADS Forms 1.17 and 1.18.

Condition

Duting our testing of the unduplicated student counts, we noted the following exceptions for
Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School:

1. One student was listed as qualifying for free/teduced meals who did not qualify
2. Three students who did qualify for free/reduced meals and were not included in the
unduplicated count. '

Out sample included 100 percent of the population of students claimed as free/reduced price
meals and English language funding eligible. The net adjustment required to the unduplicated
count for the Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School is an increase of 2.

Effect

The Northern United - Siskiyou Chatter School's unduplicated student count was undetstated
by 2 students. Increasing the unduplicated count by 2 results in an increase in the revenue from
the local control funding formula in the amount of §1,000. Following is a schedule of the
teported and audited counts.
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2022

Unduplicated Pupil Count

Increase (Decrease) to Unduplicated
Pupil Count Based on Adjustments of:

Eligibiliry Eligibility Total Enrollment
Certified For Free/  for Linglish  Eligibility Adjusted Certified Adjusted
Total Reduced Learner  For Both Total Total Total
Unduplicated Price Meals ~ Funding FRPM  Unduplicated Enrollment Enrollment
Pupil Count (FRPM) (EL) and EI.  Pupil Count Count Count
Charter School Total 328 2 330 447 447
Schools Tested:
Northern United -
Siskiyou 97 2 29 120 120
Notrthern United -
Humboldt 231 231 327 327
Cause
Clerical error.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Northern United - Siskiyou Charter School ensure that free/reduced
meals applications are on hand for all students included in the CALPADS Forms 1.18 and 1.17,

and carefully compare qualifying free/reduced applications to the CALPADS unduplicated
count to ensure all qualifying students are included.

Views of Responsible O fficials and Planned Corrective Action

The Charter School agrees and will adhere to the corrective action plan described in the
"Charter School's Cotrective Action Plan" section immediately following this section of the

audit report.



Northern United Charter Schools

Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

2120 Campton Road
Eureka, California 95503
Ph#: 707-443-2660

Fax#: 707-445-2430
nucharters.org

|
School Director ,l
Shari Lovett : M

Board of Directors
Jere Cox — President
Bianca Garza — Viece President

CHARI'ER SCHOOQIS CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Rosemary Kunkler

For The Yeat Ended June 30, 2022

2022-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Name of contact person: Shati Lovett, School Ditector

Cotrective Action: Northern United Charter Schools’ School Director and the
auditor will wotk closely in the future to plan for a timely
filing of the audit.

Proposed Completion Date: February 2, 2023

2022-002: UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNTS (CODE 40000)

Name of contact petson: Shari Lovett, School Director

Cotrective Action: The specific students’ free/reduced status were updated mn
CalPads and in the school’s information system to ensure
accurate eligibility. The Food Setvices Coordinator will
ensure that free/reduced meals applications are on and for
all students included in the CalPads reports 1.17 and 1.18
and carefully compare qualifying free/reduced applications
to the CalPads unduplicated count to ensure all qualifying
students atre included.

Proposed Completion Date: February 2, 2023
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NORTHERN UNITED CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

June 30, 2022

2021-001: LATE FILING OF AUDIT REPORT (CODE 30000)

Condition

Prior to the initial January 31, 2022 deadline, the Northern United — Siskiyou Chatter School
obtained an extension until February 28, 2022 to file the audit repott. The Northern United —
Siskiyou Chatter School’s audit report was filed in early April 2022.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Charter School and the auditor wotk closely in the future to plan fora
timely filing of the audit.

Current Status

Not implemented. See cutrent year Finding 2022-001.

46



	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	N 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure


